
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

FEBRUARY 8, 2021

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 8th of February, 2021 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the
City Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota,
Texas 77868 , at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:
 
To watch the City Council meeting live please visit the City of Navasota’s Youtube
here: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCltnx7BQt0TCIYJRiZ14g5w

If you have any questions during the meeting please email them to
council@navasotatx.gov or text 936-825-5557. Please ensure to provide your full
name and home address.

If you prefer to call-in please dial +13462487799 and enter Meeting ID: 709 770 2250
#

To Join Meeting virtually please click link below:

https://zoom.us/j/7097702250
 
1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City
Manager.



4. Staff Report:

(a) Introduction of new employees;

(b) Update on Railroad Street drainage improvement project;

(c) Code Enforcement update;

(d) Board and Commission update; and

(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community
interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence;
information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public
officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events
organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or
community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled
to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving
imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has
arisen after the posting of the agenda.

5. Public hearing on request from Audrey Sauls to change the name of Peeples Street
to Baldwins Boulevard.

6. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 955-21,
relating to speed zones which specifically designates additional areas in the City of
Navasota in which speed of thirty (30) miles per hour or more are authorized.

7. Consideration and Possible Action on Social Media Policy.

8. Consideration and Possible Action on Communications Policy. 

9. Consideration and possible action on approval of the order of election for the May
1, 2021 election to elect two City Councilmembers to Positions 4 and 5.

Consideraci'on y acci'on posible en aprobar la orden de la elecci'on para que la
elecci'on del 1 de mayo de 2021 elija dos la ciudad Councilmembers a las
posiciones 4 and 5.



10. Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and
vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor
or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the
regular agenda.

Consent Items are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of January
2021;

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of January
2021;

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 951-
21, amending Chapter 4 Business regulations, Article 4.02 sale of alcohol
beverages regarding authorizing open containers of alcohol in the Central Business
District in City of Navasota;

D. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 952-
21, designating a portion of Railroad Street a one-way street and authorizing the
placement of signage;

E. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 953-
21, relating to speed zones which specifically designate additional areas in the City
of Navasota in which rates of speed of thirty (30) miles per hour or more are
authorized; and

F. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 954-
21, authorizing participation with other Entergy service area cities in matters
concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Public Utility Commission of Texas in 2021.

11. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 687-21, approving a joint
election contract between the City of Navasota, Grimes County and the Navasota
Independent School District.

Consideración y posible acción sobre la Resolución No 687-21, aprobando un
contrato electoral conjunto entre la Ciudad de Navasota, el Condado de Grimes y
el Distrito Escolar Independiente de Navasota.

12. Adjourn.

DATED THIS THE 2ND OF FEBRUARY, 2021

/BS/

BY: BRAD STAFFORD, CITY MANAGER



I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of
meeting of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and
correct copy of said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said
notice in the glass bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the
Municipal Building as well as in the bulletin board on the north side of the
Municipal Building of the City of Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and
readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said notice was
posted on the 2nd of February, 2021 at 02:56 PM and will remain posted
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said
meeting. Agendas may be viewed at www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any
time deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under
the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.084.

DATED THIS THE 2ND OF FEBRUARY, 2021

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE AT (936) 825?
6475 OR (936) 825?6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825?2403.
 



City Manager’s Message 

An Executive Summary of Agenda Items and Current Issues 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council Meeting 

2-8-21 

 

 

1.  Call to order 

 

2. Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance 

  

3. Remarks of Visitors 

Staff is unaware of anyone wishing to address the City Council. 

 

4.  Staff Report: 

Introduction of new employees – Navasota Police Department has several new 

employees who will be introduced. 

 

Update on Railroad Street drainage improvement project – Jose Coronilla will 

update the City Council and citizens on the Railroad Street drainage improvement 

project. 

 

Code Enforcement Update – Erik Covarubias will present an update on activity in  

the Code Enforcement Department. 

 

 

5.  Public hearing on request from Audrey Sauls to change the name of Peeples 

Street to Baldwins Boulevard. 

 Audrey Sauls requested that the city change the name of Peeples Street to 

Baldwin’s Boulevard in honor of the pastor of Mt. Calvary Baptist Church.  Staff 

explained to her the difficulties in changing names of streets and the costs 

involved as well as the policy the City has adopted regarding naming of facilities.  

Staff then researched Peeples Street. We were unable to determine when the street 

was named, however we did find records of DL Peeples owning land along that 

street and found his history.  Darling Luther Peeples was a Major and Surgeon, 

2nd Regiment, Texas Infantry, Veteran of the Spanish-American War, came to 

Navasota in the late 1800’s and died in Navasota in 1935 at age 72 of coronary 

occlusion. 

 

Consideration of the name change will be placed on the February 22nd agenda. 

 

 

 

 



6.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 955-

21, relating to speed zones which specifically designates additional areas in 

the City of Navasota in which speed of thirty (30) miles per hour or more are 

authorized. 

 TXDOT performed a speed study on FM 379, and recommend changing the speed 

limit from 55 to 45 and 40 along the roadway from Washington Avenue to the 

city limits. 

 

 

7.  Consideration and Possible Action on Social Media Policy. 

Last year the City Council asked staff to review and update the social media 

policy.  Staff and Legal Counsel reviewed the policy and made some minor 

updates. 

 

 

8.  Consideration and Possible Action on Communications Policy.  

The Communications policy was included in the request from City Council to 

review and update.  Staff and Legal Counsel reviewed the policy and made minor 

changes. 

  

 

9.  Consideration and possible action on approval of the order of election for the 

May 1, 2021 election to elect two City Councilmembers to Positions 4 and 5.  

Consideraci'on y acci'on posible en aprobar la orden de la elecci'on para que 

la elecci'on del 1 de mayo de 2021 elija dos la ciudad Councilmembers a las 

posiciones 4 and 5. 

City Council positions 4 and 5 currently held by Bert Miller and Grant Holt will 

come up for election in May.  State law requires the election to be called not later 

than the 62nd day before the election and City Charter requires the city council to 

order the election at least 30 days before the election. 

 

 

10.  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion 

and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by 

the Mayor or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed 

from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City 

Council as part of the regular agenda. 

Consent Items are: 

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of 

January 2021; 

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of 

January 2021;  

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 

951-21, amending Chapter 4 Business regulations, Article 4.02 sale of alcohol 

beverages regarding authorizing open containers of alcohol in the Central 

Business District in City of Navasota; 



D. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 

952-21, designating a portion of Railroad Street a one-way street and 

authorizing the placement of signage; 

E. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 

953-21, relating to speed zones which specifically designate additional areas 

in the City of Navasota in which rates of speed of thirty (30) miles per hour 

or more are authorized; and 

F. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 

954-21, authorizing participation with other Entergy service area cities in 

matters concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Public Utility Commission of 

Texas in 2021. 

 

 

11.  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 668-20, approving a 

joint election contract between the City of Navasota, Grimes County and the 

Navasota Independent School District. 

Consideración y posible acción sobre la Resolución No 668-20, aprobando un 

contrato electoral conjunto entre la Ciudad de Navasota, el Condado de 

Grimes y el Distrito Escolar Independiente de Navasota. 

 

 State law requires the City and school district to hold joint elections.  The City 

contracts with the Grimes County Election Administrator each year to administer 

the joint election and early voting. 

 

 

 

Calendar of Events 

 

February 16th     Ribbon Cutting 

5:45 p.m.    Ira Floyd Softball Field 

 

February 18th     Brad Vacation 

 

February 22nd    City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

March 5th     TCMA Region 3 meeting 

     Graham, Texas 

 

March 5th & 6th    Texas Birthday Bash 

 

March 8th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

March 22nd     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 



 

April 12th      City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

April 21st-23rd     TCMA Managers Clinic 

     Granbury, Texas 

 

April 26th      City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

May 10th      City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

May 24th      City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Brad Stafford 

City Manager 

 



 
 
 
 

Vision Statement: 
 

Navasota 2027:  What America Wants To Be 
“A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service-oriented, 

close-knit community filled with 
historical charm and promise for people and business.” 

 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains 
our heritage, culture, and uniqueness while 

maximizing our economic and social development.” 
 
 
 



 
 
 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 
COUNCIL LEADERSHIP POLICY 

 
 
It is the desire of the Navasota City Council to demonstrate responsible 
leadership by: 
 

(a) Establishing a 2027 Strategic Growth Map for the City of Navasota. 
 
(b) Assuring stable and effective city operations. 
 
(c) Developing and adopting policies that will guide the growth of the City 

of Navasota. 
 
(d) Facilitating private/public sector partnerships at the local, regional, 

state and federal level that will invest in the future of Navasota. 
 
(e) Ensuring all Navasota boards, commissions and committees are 

aligned with the Council’s growth policies. 



 

 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

S.M.A.R.T. GOAL SETTING SYSTEM 

Area Today’s Date Target Date Date Achieved 

City Council Retreat May 19, 2020 2020 – 2021  

 

Goal Statement: A descriptive statement of the DESIRED OUTCOME. 

(a S.M.A.R.T. Goal is Specific, Measurable, Actionable, Responsible and Time-bound) 

 

The Management Connection, Inc. provided Professional Facilitation to the City of Navasota 

City Council on May 19th, 2020. This document captures the discussion outcomes and Council’s 

direction to the staff for FY 2020 – 2021. 

 

 

Retreat Summary 

Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 9:20am. The City Manager reviewed the 

accomplishments made based on Council’s direction at the last Retreat in September 2019. A 

staff member from each department shared a SWOT Analysis of the department based on 

current circumstances and highlighted a few key areas they wanted Council think about as 

they move forward. The Council provided direction on multiple items from the agenda. The 

direction from the Council is provided below. 

 

City Council Direction for 2020 - 2021 

Action Steps (List the specific actions you will take to achieve this goal) Target Date Who 
Percentage 

Completion 

1. The Council directed the City Manager not to 

lay off anyone from the workforce due to the 

current environment. The Council expressed 

concern that the staff was already shorthanded 

and operating with a heavy workload. 

a. The City Manager was asked to explore 

options on how to strengthen the 

workforce by adding positions. The City 

Manager is to conduct a Cost/Benefit 

Analysis for positions needed. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

2. The Fire Chief will provide the Council with a 

monetary amount of what it will take to move 

part-time staff to full-time staff. 

6/19/20 Fire Chief  

3. The City Manager and Fire Chief will consider 2020 – City Manager,  



 

 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

options for the new Fire Station. 

a. Look into possible options to finance the 

new station with low interest rates. 

b. Look into building a new station with 

partnerships, i.e. the animal shelter. 

c. Staffing is the priority for the Fire 

Department.  

2021  Fire Chief 

4. The City Staff gave a comprehensive 

explanation of the City’s Financial Picture. The 

Council complimented the Staff’s ability to 

manage the City’s finances in an efficient and 

effective manner. The Council also 

acknowledged that their perspective of the 

finances had changed from possibly being in 

trouble to having a good handle on them. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

5. The Council agreed on the criteria in which the 

City’s Reserve funds may be used: 

a. The funds should be left untouched 

unless they are absolutely needed. 

b. The funds should be used as leverage for 

other things during this time. 

c. Per the Financial Policy, the Reserve 

funds may be used in one or a 

combination of the following ways: 

i. Emergencies; 

ii. One-time expenditures that do not 

increase reoccurring operating 

costs 

iii. Major capital purchases 

iv. Start-up expenditures for new 

programs undertaken at mid-year, 

provided such action is considered 

in the context of multiyear 

projections or program revenues 

and expenditures 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

6. The City Staff will consider opportunities to 

capitalize on the low interest rates and use 

them to the City’s advantage. The Staff will 

present these opportunities to Council. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

7. The City Staff gave a detailed update on the 2020 – City Staff  



 

 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

Appraisal District. This gave the Council a clear 

picture of what to expect. 

2021 

8. The Mayor and City Manager will create a 

Legislative Agenda and present it to the 

Council. 

2020 – 

2021 

Mayor, City 

Manager 
 

9. The Council directed the City Manager to 

continue the Downtown Plan as he explained it. 

The City Manager is to leverage private/public 

partnerships in completing the project. 

a. The Downtown Plan addressed the 

streetscapes, traffic patterns, quiet zone, 

cross walk, building construction and 

financial resources. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

10. The Council discussed the pros and cons of 

being part of the BCS MSA. The Council and 

Staff did not identify any real benefit of being 

part of the MSA. In fact, there was more 

agreement as to why the City should not be part 

of the MSA. The Council decided to continue to 

monitor the MSA. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

11. The City Staff will continue to strengthen 

partnerships with other entities. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

12. The City Manager will lead the staff in 

incorporating their Department SWOT Analysis 

into an Action Plan for 2020 – 2021. 

2020 – 

2021 
City Staff  

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 4. AGENDA DATE: February 8,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Staff Report:

(a) Introduction of new employees;

(b) Update on Railroad Street drainage improvement project;

(c) Code Enforcement update;

(d) Board and Commission update; and

(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of
community interests, including expressions of thanks,
congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday
schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming
events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding
social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored
by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City
officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that
has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Brad Stafford, City Manager



 

ATTACHMENTS:



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5. AGENDA DATE: February 8,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Public hearing on request from Audrey Sauls to change the
name of Peeples Street to Baldwins Boulevard.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Audrey Sauls submitted a request to change Peeples Street to
Baldwins Boulevard.  The Naming Policy states that a public
hearing will be held to allow the requestor to present the reason
for the requested name change.  Council will then take action
within two weeks of the hearing.

Public hearing was opened at ________ p.m.

Public hearing closed at _________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends conducting the public hearing.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Audrey Sauls request
2. Family History on Peeples

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1611942046x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1611954087x_at.pdf
























ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6. AGENDA DATE: February 8,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 955-21, relating to speed zones which specifically
designates additional areas in the City of Navasota in which speed
of thirty (30) miles per hour or more are authorized.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City of Navasota received a letter from TxDOT on December
28, 2020 in reference to a recent speed zone  study that was
conducted in August 2020 on FM 379.  TXDOT recommends
lowering the speed limit from the intersection of Washington
Avenue to the City limits. 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance No.
955-21, relating to speed zones which specifically designates
additional areas in the City of Navasota in which speed of thirty
(30) miles per hour or more are authorized.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 955-21

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1611953920x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 955-21 

 

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO SPEED ZONES WHICH SPECIFICALLY 

DESIGNATES ADDITIONAL AREAS IN THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 

IN WHICH RATES OF SPEED OF THIRTY (30) MILES PER HOUR OR MORE ARE 

AUTHORIZED; RESCINDING ALL PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 

AND DECLARING THAT ATTENDANT FACTS NECESSITATE IMMEDIATE ACTION 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1.  That any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances relating to speed zones on FM 

379 in the City of Navasota are hereby rescinded, and the following are additional specifically 

designated areas n which a rate of speed of thirty (30) miles per hour or more is authorized. 

 

 A.) FM 379,   for traffic moving in a southernly direction for the first 0.475  

miles from the intersection of SH 105, the speed limit shall be forty (40) 

miles per hour.  For the next 1.475 miles, the speed limit shall be forty-

five (45) miles per hour.  For the next 1.581 miles to the intersection of 

BS 6, the speed limit shall be forty-five (45) miles per hour. 

 

B.) FM 379,   for traffic moving in a northerly direction for the first 1.581  

miles from the intersection of BS 6, the speed limit shall be forty-five 

(45) miles per hour.  For the next 1.475 miles, the speed limit shall be 

forty-five (45 miles per hour.  For the next 0.475 miles to the 

intersection of SH 105, the speed limit shall be forty (40) miles per hour. 

 

SECTION II: WHEREAS, the preservation of the general welfare of the public necessitates 

immediate action, this Ordinance shall be effective from and after the date of its passage a 

provided by the Charter of the City of Navasota. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS THE 8TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2021. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS THE 22ND DAY OF FEBRUARY 2021. 

 

 

 

                                                                 _______________________ 

                                                                        Hon. Bert Miller, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST:                                                         APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

______________________________      ________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY      CARY BOVEY, LEGAL COUNSEL 

 

 



THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

 

COUNTY OF GRIMES  § 

 

 

 I, _____________________ City Secretary of the City of Navasota, County of 

Grimes, State of Texas, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and 

correct copy of an Ordinance passed and approved by the City of Navasota on the _____ 

day of _________________, 2021, and is now in file in my office and notice is hereby 

given of the passage of the same in the manner and for the length of time as required by 

the Charter of the City of Navasota. 

 

 GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the ______ day of  

 

____________________, 2021. 

 

 

  

      _____________________________ 

      Susie M. Homeyer 

City Secretary, City of Navasota 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7. AGENDA DATE: February 8,
2021

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and Possible Action on Social Media Policy.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Staff and legal council updated the current Social Media Policy.
Updates include the establishment of www.NavasotaTx.gov as the
city's primary internet presence and the overall cleanup of
language.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Social Media Policy.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Social Media Policy with edits
2. Social Media Policy

Madison Brooks, Marketing and
Communication Coordinator

file:///C:/Windows/TEMP/BCL%20Technologies/easyPDF%208/%22%22%22http:/www.NavasotaTx.gov%22%22%22
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1612210544x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1612201522x_at.pdf


 

City of Navasota Social Media Policy 

This policy establishes standards and requirements for the establishment and use by the City of 
Navasota (“City”) of social media sites (including but not limited to Facebook and Twitter) as a 
means of conveying City information to its citizens and the general public. 

The intended purpose for establishing City social media sites is to disseminate information from 
the City and about the City to its citizens and the general public. City social media sites are 
designated as limited public forums. 

The City has a vested interest in protecting its reputation and the community by ensuring that an 
employee’s communication on behalf of the City not only reflects positively on the employee, 
but also on the City. The City also has an overriding interest and expectation in deciding what is 
“spoken” on behalf of the City on City social media sites.  

For purposes of this policy, “social media” is understood to be content created by individuals 
using accessible, expandable, and upgradable publishing technologies, through and on the 
Internet.  Examples of social media include, but are not limited to, Facebook, blogs, Instagram, 
RSS, YouTube, Second Life, Twitter, LinkedIn, Delicious, and Flicker.  For purposes of this 
policy, “comments” include statements, information, articles, pictures, videos or any other form 
of communicative content posted on a City social media site. 

General Policy 

1. The establishment and use by any City department or organization associated with the 
City or City social media sites are subject to approval by the City Manager or his/her 
designees.  All City social media sites shall be administered by the Marketing and 
Communications Coordinator or his/her designated representative. 

2. City social media sites shall clearly state that they are maintained by the City and that 
they follow the City’s Social Media Policy. 

3. Wherever possible, City social media sites shall link back to the official City website for 
forms, documents, online services and other information necessary to conduct business 
with the City. 

4. The Marketing and Communications Coordinator or his/her designated representative 
will monitor content on City social media sites to ensure adherence to both the City’s 
Social Media Policy and the interests and goals of the City. 

5. The City reserves the right to restrict or remove any content that is deemed in violation of 
this Social Media Policy or any applicable law.  Any content removed based on this 
Social Media Policy shall be retained by the Public Information Officer for a reasonable 
period of time, such information to include the time, date and identity of the poster, when 
available.  

Deleted: guidelines

Deleted: behind

Deleted: ,

Deleted: ,

Deleted: shall be

Deleted: c

Deleted: ,

Deleted: MySpace

Deleted: Communications and Marketing Director

Deleted: should

Deleted: make clear

Deleted: should

Deleted: &

Deleted: Director

Deleted: !

Deleted: c

Deleted: the

Deleted: s

Deleted: these guidelines

Deleted: must

Deleted: including 



 

6. These standards and requirements must be displayed to users of City social media sites or 
made available by hyperlink on said sites. 

7. The City will endeavor to administer the use of social media tools consistently, enterprise 
wide. 

8. The City’s official website at http://www.navasotatx.gov will remain the City’s primary 
and predominant internet presence. 

9. All City social media sites shall adhere to applicable federal, state and local laws, 
regulations and policies. 

10. City social media sites are subject to the Texas Public Information Act.  Any content 
maintained in a social media format that is related to City business, including but not 
limited to a list of subscribers, posted communication, and communication submitted for 
posting, may be a public record subject to public disclosure. 

11. Comments on topics or issues not within the jurisdictional purview of the City may be 
removed. 

12. Employees representing the City government via City social media sites must conduct 
themselves at all times as a representative of the City and in accordance with all City 
policies. 

13. If comments are enabled on City’s Facebook page, the City will provide a link/tab to a 
Comment Policy tab with the following disclaimer: 

“This is a limited public forum intended to disseminate information from the City and 
about the City to its citizens and the general public. Comments posted to this page will be 
monitored.  Pursuant to the City of Navasota social media policy, the City reserves the 
right to remove any inappropriate comments including but not limited to those that 
contain obscene language or sexual content, threaten or defame any person or 
organization, violate the legal ownership interest (such as a copy right) of another party, 
support or oppose political candidates or ballot propositions, promote illegal activity, 
promote commercial services or products or are not topically related to the page or 
particular posting. 

The City does not warrant or make representations or endorsements as to the quality, 
content, suitability, accuracy, or completeness of the information, text, graphics, links, 
and other items contained on a City social media site’s server or any other server. Such 
materials have been compiled from a variety of sources, and are subject to change 
without notice from the City. The City’s primary and predominant internet presence shall 
remain the City’s official website at www.navasotatx.gov and no other website or social 
media site can characterize itself as such. The City reserves the right to completely delete 
or hide, when appropriate and as soon as feasible, any posting or content unrelated to the 
purpose and topical scope of the City social media site/page. 

Deleted: guidelines

Deleted: !

Deleted: approach

Deleted: as 

Deleted:  as possible

Deleted: there should be

Deleted: Under

Deleted: posting

Deleted: have



 

Except to the extent required by law, communications made through e-mail and 
comments posted shall in no way be deemed to constitute legal notice to the City of 
Navasota or any of its agencies, officers, employees, agents, or representatives with 
respect to any existing or potential claim or cause of action against the City or any of its 
agencies, officers, employees, agents or representatives where notice to the City is 
required by any federal, state or local law, rule or regulation.  

Further, comments on a social media site should not be utilized as a method of 
contacting the City in case of an emergency. Requests for City services or aid should be 
directed to (936) 825-6475.  In case of an emergency, please call 9-1-1.” 

14. A link to the City’s website and the City’s logo will be prominently displayed on all City 
social media sites. 

15. This Social Media Policy may be revised at any time. 

 
Comment Policy 

1. As a public entity, the City must abide by certain standards to serve the public in a 
professioanal and unbiased manner. 

2. The intended purpose for establishing City social media sites is to disseminate 
information from the City and about the City to its citizens and the general public. City 
social media sites are limited public forums. 

3. Comments containing any of the following inappropriate forms of content shall not be 
permitted on City social media sites and are subject to removal and/or restriction by the 
Marketing and Communications Coordinator or his/her designated representative : 

a. Comments not related to the original topic, including random or unintelligible 
comments; 

b. Profanity, obscenity, violent comments or pornographic content/language; 

c. Content that promotes, fosters or perpetuates discrimination on the basis of race, 
creed, color, age, religion, gender or national origin; 

d. Defamatory or personal attacks; 

e. Threats to any person or organization; 

f. Comments in support of, or opposition to, any political campaigns or ballot 
measures; 

g. Solicitation of commerce, including but not limited to advertising any business, or 
the sale of any products or services; 

h. Conduct in violation of any federal, state or local law, rule or regulation; 

Deleted: s

Deleted: s

Deleted: its 

Deleted: s

Deleted: s

Deleted: all its constituents

Deleted: civil

Deleted: behind

Deleted: ,

Deleted: !

Deleted: Public Information officer or his/her designees

Deleted: of 

Deleted: product for 



 

i. Encouragement or suggestion of illegal activity; 

j. Information that may tend to compromise the safety or security of the public or 
public systems or infrastructure; or 

k. Content that violates a legal ownership interest, such as a copyright, of any party. 

4. A comment posted by a member of the public on any City social media site is the opinion 
of the commentator or poster only, and publication of a comment does not imply 
endorsement of, or agreement by, the City, nor do such comments necessarily reflect the 
opinions or policies of the City. 

5. The City reserves the right to deny access to City social media sites for any individual 
who violates the City Social Media Policy, at any time and without prior notice. 

6. Departments shall monitor their social media sites for comments requesting responses 
from the City and for comments in violation of this policy. 

7. When a City employee responds to a comment, in his/her capacity as a City employee, 
the employee’s name and title should be made available, and the employee shall not share 
personal information about himself or herself, or other City employees. 

8. A successful page or social media site requires continual and frequent review and 
monitoring.  The Marketing and Communications Coordinator or his/her designee is 
responsible for monitoring the City’s Facebook page and other City social media sites, 
and making sure the content is current.   

9. Departments will use proper grammar, avoid jargon and abbreviations.  Facebook and 
other social media sites are more casual than most other communication, but such City 
sites are still representing the City at all times.   

10. All comments posted to any City Facebook site are bound by Facebook’s Statement of 
Rights and Responsibilities, located at http://www.facebook.com/terms/php, and the City 
of Navasota reserves the right to report any violation of Facebook’s Statement of Rights 
and Responsibilities to Facebook with the intent of Facebook taking appropriate and 
reasonable responsive action. 

Policy for Employees 

1. If you publish content to any website or other social media site outside of the City’s 
social media sites and it is related to subjects associated with the City, consider a 
disclaimer such as this:  “The postings are my own and do not necessarily represent the 
City of Navasota’s positions, strategies or opinions.”  

2. Never use or reference your formal position when writing in a non-official capacity. 

3. Those with leadership responsibilities, by virtue of their position, must consider whether 
personal thoughts they publish, even in clearly personal venues, may be misunderstood as 
expressing City of Navasota positions.  Have no expectation of privacy. 

Deleted:  

Deleted: “babysitting”

Deleted: Communications and Marketing Director 

Deleted: not stale

Deleted: is

Deleted: is

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,
3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Right + Aligned at:  0.25" +
Indent at:  0.5"

Deleted: ¶

Deleted: has something to do with 



 

4. Be aware of your City association in online social networks.  If you identify yourself as a 
City employee or have a public facing position for which your City association is known 
to the general public, ensure your profile and related content (even if it is personal and 
not an official nature) is consistent with how you wish to present yourself as a City 
professional, appropriate with the public trust associated with your position, and 
conforms to the existing standards.   

5. Remain focused on customers, citizens, existing commitments and achieving the City’s 
mission.  Your use of social media tools should never interfere with your primary duties, 
with the exception of where it is a primary duty to use these tools to perform your job. 

6. Be truthful and transparent in your postings, but do not disclose confidential information.  
Everything on the internet is searchable and accessible by the public.   

7. Comments made will not paint the City in a poor light.  Social media sites are not the 
forum to air personal grievances about pay, policy or problems in the City workplace.  
Keep comments professional and tempered. If an improper comment/post is made, work 
on a correction as soon as possible.  If a new post is required to do so, make sure to 
reference the improper comment/post.   

8. Users shall minimize their use of “other than City” sections of social media websites. 

9. The user is ultimately responsible for all comments.  Employees are prohibited from 
posting: 
 

a. Information about actual or potential claims and litigation involving the City; 

b. The intellectual property of others, without written permission; and 

c. Photographs of employees or members of the public without consent. 

10. Employees have no expectation of privacy on City owned computers or devices.  Periodic 
monitoring of content is possible.   

11. Access of personal social media via City technology must be brief and not interfere with 
the performance of the employee’s duties or with the workplace, and not involved 
commercial, political or other prohibited activities. 

Policy for Elected Officials 

1. Elected officials that use the City’s social media sites are subject to the same policies as 
employees. 

2. An elected official of the City shall ensure that no possible open meetings law violation 
shall occur as a result of use of social media sites. Information communication with 
constituents is generally acceptable, but discussion of public business is prohibited, 
especially if it concerns other elected officials.   

Deleted: do

Deleted: ,

Deleted: if a mistake

Deleted: initial mistake

Commented [L2]: What is the intent of this section. When I read 
it I’m not sure what it means. Employees also may not understand. 
 

Commented [C3]: We should clarify the intent of this sentence. 



 

Elected officials shall not use the City’s social media sites to campaign for elections or ballot measures.  
Informational links back to the City’s website for detailed information on ballot measures should be 
provided on each of the City’s social media sites.   



 

City of Navasota Social Media Policy 

This policy establishes standards and requirements for the establishment and use by the City of Navasota 

(“City”) of social media sites (including but not limited to Facebook and Twitter) as a means of conveying City 

information to its citizens and the general public. 

The intended purpose for establishing City social media sites is to disseminate information from the City and 

about the City to its citizens and the general public. City social media sites are designated as limited public 

forums. 

The City has a vested interest in protecting its reputation and the community by ensuring that an employee’s 

communication on behalf of the City not only reflects positively on the employee, but also on the City. The City 

also has an overriding interest and expectation in deciding what is “spoken” on behalf of the City on City social 

media sites.  

For purposes of this policy, “social media” is understood to be content created by individuals using accessible, 

expandable, and upgradable publishing technologies, through and on the Internet.  Examples of social media 

include, but are not limited to, Facebook, blogs, Instagram, RSS, YouTube, Second Life, Twitter, LinkedIn, 

Delicious, and Flicker.  For purposes of this policy, “comments” include statements, information, articles, 

pictures, videos or any other form of communicative content posted on a City social media site. 

General Policy 

1. The establishment and use by any City department or organization associated with the City or City 

social media sites are subject to approval by the City Manager or his/her designees.  All City social 

media sites shall be administered by the Marketing and Communications Coordinator or his/her 

designated representative. 

2. City social media sites shall clearly state that they are maintained by the City and that they follow the 

City’s Social Media Policy. 

3. Wherever possible, City social media sites shall link back to the official City website for forms, 

documents, online services and other information necessary to conduct business with the City. 

4. The Marketing and Communications Coordinator or his/her designated representative will monitor 

content on City social media sites to ensure adherence to both the City’s Social Media Policy and the 

interests and goals of the City. 

5. The City reserves the right to restrict or remove any content that is deemed in violation of this Social 

Media Policy or any applicable law.  Any content removed based on this Social Media Policy shall be 

retained by the Public Information Officer for a reasonable period of time, such information to include 

the time, date and identity of the poster, when available.  

6. These standards and requirements must be displayed to users of City social media sites or made 

available by hyperlink on said sites. 

7. The City will endeavor to administer the use of social media tools consistently, enterprise wide. 



 

8. The City’s official website at http://www.navasotatx.gov will remain the City’s primary and 

predominant internet presence. 

9. All City social media sites shall adhere to applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and 

policies. 

10. City social media sites are subject to the Texas Public Information Act.  Any content maintained in a 

social media format that is related to City business, including but not limited to a list of subscribers, 

posted communication, and communication submitted for posting, may be a public record subject to 

public disclosure. 

11. Comments on topics or issues not within the jurisdictional purview of the City may be removed. 

12. Employees representing the City government via City social media sites must conduct themselves at all 

times as a representative of the City and in accordance with all City policies. 

13. If comments are enabled on City’s Facebook page, the City will provide a link/tab to a Comment Policy 

tab with the following disclaimer: 

“This is a limited public forum intended to disseminate information from the City and about the City 

to its citizens and the general public. Comments posted to this page will be monitored.  Pursuant to the 

City of Navasota social media policy, the City reserves the right to remove any inappropriate comments 

including but not limited to those that contain obscene language or sexual content, threaten or defame 

any person or organization, violate the legal ownership interest (such as a copy right) of another party, 

support or oppose political candidates or ballot propositions, promote illegal activity, promote 

commercial services or products or are not topically related to the page or particular posting. 

The City does not warrant or make representations or endorsements as to the quality, content, 

suitability, accuracy, or completeness of the information, text, graphics, links, and other items contained 

on a City social media site’s server or any other server. Such materials have been compiled from a 

variety of sources, and are subject to change without notice from the City. The City’s primary and 

predominant internet presence shall remain the City’s official website at www.navasotatx.gov and no 

other website or social media site can characterize itself as such. The City reserves the right to 

completely delete or hide, when appropriate and as soon as feasible, any posting or content unrelated to 

the purpose and topical scope of the City social media site/page. 

Except to the extent required by law, communications made through e-mail and comments posted 

shall in no way be deemed to constitute legal notice to the City of Navasota or any of its agencies, 

officers, employees, agents, or representatives with respect to any existing or potential claim or cause of 

action against the City or any of its agencies, officers, employees, agents or representatives where notice 

to the City is required by any federal, state or local law, rule or regulation.  

Further, comments on a social media site should not be utilized as a method of contacting the City in 

case of an emergency. Requests for City services or aid should be directed to (936) 825-6475.  In case of 

an emergency, please call 9-1-1.” 

http://www.navasotatx.gov/


 

14. A link to the City’s website and the City’s logo will be prominently displayed on all City social media 

sites. 

15. This Social Media Policy may be revised at any time. 

 

Comment Policy 

1. As a public entity, the City must abide by certain standards to serve the public in a professional and 

unbiased manner. 

2. The intended purpose for establishing City social media sites is to disseminate information from the City 

and about the City to its citizens and the general public. City social media sites are limited public 

forums. 

3. Comments containing any of the following inappropriate forms of content shall not be permitted on City 

social media sites and are subject to removal and/or restriction by the Marketing and Communications 

Coordinator or his/her designated representative : 

a. Comments not related to the original topic, including random or unintelligible comments; 

b. Profanity, obscenity, violent comments or pornographic content/language; 

c. Content that promotes, fosters or perpetuates discrimination on the basis of race, creed, color, 

age, religion, gender or national origin; 

d. Defamatory or personal attacks; 

e. Threats to any person or organization; 

f. Comments in support of, or opposition to, any political campaigns or ballot measures; 

g. Solicitation of commerce, including but not limited to advertising any business, or the sale of any 

products or services; 

h. Conduct in violation of any federal, state or local law, rule or regulation; 

i. Encouragement or suggestion of illegal activity; 

j. Information that may tend to compromise the safety or security of the public or public systems or 

infrastructure; or 

k. Content that violates a legal ownership interest, such as a copyright, of any party. 

4. A comment posted by a member of the public on any City social media site is the opinion of the 

commentator or poster only, and publication of a comment does not imply endorsement of, or agreement 

by, the City, nor do such comments necessarily reflect the opinions or policies of the City. 

5. The City reserves the right to deny access to City social media sites for any individual who violates the 

City Social Media Policy, at any time and without prior notice. 



 

6. Departments shall monitor their social media sites for comments requesting responses from the City and 

for comments in violation of this policy. 

7. When a City employee responds to a comment, in his/her capacity as a City employee, the employee’s 

name and title should be made available, and the employee shall not share personal information about 

himself or herself, or other City employees. 

8. A successful page or social media site requires continual and frequent review and monitoring.  The 

Marketing and Communications Coordinator or his/her designee is responsible for monitoring the City’s 

Facebook page and other City social media sites, and making sure the content is current.   

9. Departments will use proper grammar, avoid jargon and abbreviations.  Facebook and other social media 

sites are more casual than most other communication, but such City sites are still representing the City at 

all times.   

10. All comments posted to any City Facebook site are bound by Facebook’s Statement of Rights and 

Responsibilities, located at http://www.facebook.com/terms/php, and the City of Navasota reserves the 

right to report any violation of Facebook’s Statement of Rights and Responsibilities to Facebook with 

the intent of Facebook taking appropriate and reasonable responsive action. 

Policy for Employees 

1. If you publish content to any website or other social media site outside of the City’s social media sites 

and it is related to subjects associated with the City, consider a disclaimer such as this:  “The postings 

are my own and do not necessarily represent the City of Navasota’s positions, strategies or opinions.”  

2. Never use or reference your formal position when writing in a non-official capacity. 

3. Those with leadership responsibilities, by virtue of their position, must consider whether personal 

thoughts they publish, even in clearly personal venues, may be misunderstood as expressing City of 

Navasota positions.  Have no expectation of privacy. 

4. Be aware of your City association in online social networks.  If you identify yourself as a City employee 

or have a public facing position for which your City association is known to the general public, ensure 

your profile and related content (even if it is personal and not an official nature) is consistent with how 

you wish to present yourself as a City professional, appropriate with the public trust associated with 

your position, and conforms to the existing standards.   

5. Remain focused on customers, citizens, existing commitments and achieving the City’s mission.  Your 

use of social media tools should never interfere with your primary duties, with the exception of where it 

is a primary duty to use these tools to perform your job. 

6. Be truthful and transparent in your postings, but do not disclose confidential information.  Everything on 

the internet is searchable and accessible by the public.   

7. Comments made will not paint the City in a poor light.  Social media sites are not the forum to air 

personal grievances about pay, policy or problems in the City workplace.  Keep comments professional 

http://www.facebook.com/terms/php


 

and tempered. If an improper comment/post is made, work on a correction as soon as possible.  If a new 

post is required to do so, make sure to reference the improper comment/post.   

8. The user is ultimately responsible for all comments.  Employees are prohibited from posting: 

 

a. Information about actual or potential claims and litigation involving the City; 

b. The intellectual property of others, without written permission; and 

c. Photographs of employees or members of the public without consent. 

9. Employees have no expectation of privacy on City owned computers or devices.  Periodic monitoring of 

content is possible.   

10. Access of personal social media via City technology must be brief and not interfere with the 

performance of the employee’s duties or with the workplace, and not involved commercial, political or 

other prohibited activities. 

Policy for Elected Officials 

1. Elected officials that use the City’s social media sites are subject to the same policies as employees. 

2. An elected official of the City shall ensure that no possible open meetings law violation shall occur as a 

result of use of social media sites  

Elected officials shall not use the City’s social media sites to campaign for elections or ballot measures.  Informational 

links back to the City’s website for detailed information on ballot measures should be provided on each of the City’s 

social media sites.   



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8. AGENDA DATE: February 8,
2021

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and Possible Action on Communications
Policy. 
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Staff and legal council updated the current Communications
Policy. Updates include a clear purpose of communication,
compliance with the Texas Public Information Act, and the overall
cleanup of language. 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Communications Policy.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Communications Policy with edits
2. Communications Policy

Madison Brooks, Marketing and
Communication Coordinator

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1612210470x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1612202027x_at.pdf


2.12 Communications. 
 
Staff Communications to City Council, Public, and Media.  To better serve our community, the 
City of Navasota needs to let the public know who we are and what we do.  That message is 
often conveyed through the news media and social media. It shall be the policy of the City of 
Navasota to maintain and promote open avenues of communication between the City, the 
news media, and social media. The City strives to provide accurate, informed, timely and 
relevant information to the media and to the public.  The entire City staff needs to be aware of 
how we can partner with the media to better serve the public.  By policy, the City Manager or 
his designee shall handle all media relations for the City.  Outlined below are the City’s media 
communications policies: 
 
1) Purpose – The goal of this policy is to establish a uniform procedure for working with the 

media that will help ensure accuracy, citywide coordination and a timely response to meet 
media deadlines. 
 

2) Scope – This policy applies to all departments of the City of Navasota.  Individual 
departments may have additional policies and/or procedures for the release of information, 
as approved by the City Manager. 
 

3) Media Interaction –  
a) Department heads, City staff and Council members are required to notify the 

Marketing/Communications Coordinator when the media is requesting interviews or 
information in the form of press releases involving the City. The Communications 
Coordinator will be responsible for scheduling any media interviews, as well as 
developing and disseminating press releases. 

 
b) Two communications platforms the City currently uses are the City website and social 

media. 
 

c) Responding to media inquiries at crime scenes, fires, hazardous materials alarms, and 
other emergency and/or public safety situations may be handled differently, as 
determined on a case-by-case basis.  The responses must come from the designated 
spokesperson unless otherwise approved by the City Manager. The Communications 
Coordinator shall be notified in instances where there is media coverage and will travel 
to the scene when warranted. 

 
d) Power outages or incidents involving natural gas/water/wastewater will be handled 

through the Communications Coordinator. 
 

e) For any inquiries that require extensive research, involve multiple departments, deal 
with policy issues, or may be controversial, the Communications Coordinator shall be 
notified immediately, and before an interview takes place.  A designee from the 
department(s) involved, along with the Communications Coordinator, will be 

Deleted:  and the

Deleted: As well as,

Deleted: press

Deleted:  

Deleted: To better serve our community, the City of 
Navasota needs to let the public know who we are and what 
we do.  That message is often conveyed through the news 
and social media. …

Deleted: is

Commented [C1]: Who is this? Is there a position/person 
designated as the Communications Coordinator? 

Deleted: as it relates to

Deleted: is

Deleted: typically 

Commented [C2]: Who is this person/position? 

Deleted: should

Deleted: should



responsible for coordinating the response to ensure accurate and complete information 
is presented to the media.  The Communications Coordinator, along with the 
Department head, will determine who should serve as spokesperson to the media.  This 
must be done in a timely fashion to meet the media deadlines.  In these instances, the 
Communications Coordinator is responsible for notifying the Assistant City Manager. 
 

f) The Communications Coordinator will work with any City Staff, City Council Member or 
other City representative regarding obtaining media training. 

 
4) Records –  

a) The City of Navasota is a local governmental entity and subject to the Texas Public 
Information Act (“TPIA”).  As such, most of what we do is a matter of open record.  
There are very few exceptions included in the TPIA. To insure that only accurate and 
legal personnel information is released in response to a Public Information Act request 
for personnel records, all information relating to personnel records, shall be released 
only by the City of Navasota Human Resources Department, the City’s Legal Counsel or 
the City Manager’s Office. 
 

b) The City Manager’s Office provides a clipping service for all articles related to the City of 
Navasota that appear in local/area newspapers.  On occasion, articles about City 
government and staff appear in magazines and professional journals; in an effort to 
archive this information and to generate additional coverage for City staff and activities, 
City staff is encouraged to send copies of these articles to the City Manager’s office. 

 
5) Press Releases –  

a) Press releases are written communications that are used to inform the public or news 
media about an event that is occurring in or involving the City. Department heads or 
their designee shall be responsible for generating press releases that affect their area of 
responsibility. The Communications Coordinator may assist in preparing press releases if 
needed.   

 
b) All press releases shall be forwarded to the Communications Coordinator for approval 

prior to distribution to the media. Upon approval, the Communications Coordinator will 
send the press releases to the media or appropriate outlet. 

 
6) Press Conferences –  

a) Press conferences offer an opportunity for the City to make announcements and/or 
answer questions for the media.  
 

b) When an event occurs and the news media requests a press conference or an on-
camera interview, staff/City Council shall direct these media request to the 
Communications Coordinator.  
 

Deleted:  

Deleted: and they are determined by Texas law

Deleted: : they include; personnel records (with the 
exception of name, age, date of original employment, 
current position title, current salary, date and amount of 
most recent personnel action, and department and 
location to which currently assigned); certain trade secret 
information supplied to the City; certain information 
regarding expansion and location of business or industrial 
development projects, privileged communications from 
attorneys for the City; certain law enforcement records 
that may be related to criminal investigations; and 
individual health records.  

Deleted: Attorney’s office

Deleted: City Government 

Deleted: t

Deleted: departments are

Deleted: crafting

Deleted: ¶



c) When a department requires a press conference to be held, the department head shall 
work with the Communications Coordinator. 

 
7) Advertising – All published reports, brochures, fact sheets, etc., should be sent to the City 

Manager’s office to be archived and considered for availability in the Citizen information 
display rack and on the City’s website. 

 
8) Public Meetings – All public and /or community meetings should be reported to the City 

Manager’s Office and included on the City’s weekly calendar, which is shared with local 
media and citizen groups and is made available on the City’s website. 

 
9) Internet/City Website –  
The Internet has increasingly become a tool of choice for City employees, citizens and people, 
both nationally and internationally, to get information about the City of Navasota. The 
following shall apply to information posted on the City’s website:   
 

a) Be accurate, consistent and timely with information that is to be published on the City’s 
website.  Additionally, to the extent reasonably feasible, ensure that the information 
published is accessible by all people regardless of their respective level of technology.   

b) The Communications Coordinator will determine what information is highlighted on the 
City’s home page. 

c) The Communications Coordinator will work with department heads and the Assistant 
City Manager to determine what information will be posted to the City’s website. 

d) Linking to an outside news source as a way to promote City of Navasota-related 
information is prohibited.  Exceptions to this would be in the case of a co-sponsored 
event. 

e) Information posted to the City’s website should include a contact name with a phone 
number and an email address.  This contact person should be in a position to respond to 
requests for additional information in a timely manner.  

f) The Communications Coordinator is responsible for determining what graphics 
standards are appropriate for the City’s website. 

 
10)  Social Media –  
Social networking and social media policy for the City of Navasota addresses the fast-changing 
landscape of the Internet and the way the public communicates and obtains information online. 
City departments may consider using social media tools to reach a broader audience.  The City 
encourages the use of social media to further the goals of the City and the mission of its 
departments, where appropriate. All social media use must comply with the requirements 
contained in this communications policy and the City’s social media policy. 
 

a) Personal Use 
All City employees and Council members may have personal social networking and 
social media sites. These sites should remain personal in nature and be used to share 
personal opinions or non-work related information.  Following this principle helps 

Deleted: might be

Deleted: residents

Deleted: ,



ensure a distinction between sharing personal and City views. Council members should 
be cautious commenting on social media posts where other Council members have 
commented as this could lead to a violation of the Texas Open Meetings Act.  

 
b) City employees and Council members must never use their City email account or 

password in conjunction with a personal social networking or social media site. 
 
The following guidance is for City employees who decide to have a personal social media or 
social networking site and who decide to comment on posts about official City business: 
 

• State your name and, if relevant, role, when discussing City business; 
• Use a disclaimer such as: “The statements posted on this site are my own and don’t 

reflect or represent the opinions of the City of Navasota for which I work.” 
 

 
c) Professional Use 

All official City-related communication through social media and social networking 
outlets shall remain professional in nature and shall always be conducted in accordance 
with the City’s communications policy, social media policy, practices and expectations.  
Employees and Council members must not use official City social media sites for political 
purposes, to conduct private commercial transactions, or to engage in private business 
activities. 

 
d) City employees should be mindful that inappropriate usage of official City social media 

sites can be grounds for disciplinary action.  If social media sites are used for official City 
business, the entire City site, regardless of any personal views, is subject to best 
guidelines and standards as well as public records laws, including but not limited to the 
Texas Public Information Act. 

 
Only persons authorized by the City may publish content to a City website or official City social 
media site on behalf of the City. 

Deleted: agency

Deleted: or

Deleted: .

Deleted: posting

Deleted: should

Deleted: should

Deleted: agency

Deleted: individuals



2.12 Communications. 
 
Staff Communications to City Council, Public, and Media.  To better serve our community, the City of 
Navasota needs to let the public know who we are and what we do.  That message is often conveyed through 
the news media and social media. It shall be the policy of the City of Navasota to maintain and promote open 
avenues of communication between the City, the news media, and social media. The City strives to provide 
accurate, informed, timely and relevant information to the media and to the public.  The entire City staff 
needs to be aware of how we can partner with the media to better serve the public.  By policy, the City 
Manager or his designee shall handle all media relations for the City.  Outlined below are the City’s media 
communications policies: 
 
1) Purpose – The goal of this policy is to establish a uniform procedure for working with the media that will 

help ensure accuracy, citywide coordination and a timely response to meet media deadlines. 
 

2) Scope – This policy applies to all departments of the City of Navasota.  Individual departments may have 
additional policies and/or procedures for the release of information, as approved by the City Manager. 
 

3) Media Interaction –  
a) Department heads, City staff and Council members are required to notify the 

Marketing/Communications Coordinator when the media is requesting interviews or information in the 
form of press releases involving the City. The Communications Coordinator will be responsible for 
scheduling any media interviews, as well as developing and disseminating press releases. 

 
b) Two communications platforms the City currently uses are the City website and social media. 

 
c) Responding to media inquiries at crime scenes, fires, hazardous materials alarms, and other emergency 

and/or public safety situations may be handled differently, as determined on a case-by-case basis.  The 
responses must come from the Department Director unless otherwise approved by the City Manager. 
The Communications Coordinator shall be notified in instances where there is media coverage and will 
travel to the scene when warranted. 

 
d) Power outages or incidents involving natural gas/water/wastewater will be handled through the 

Communications Coordinator. 
 

e) For any inquiries that require extensive research, involve multiple departments, deal with policy issues, 
or may be controversial, the Communications Coordinator shall be notified immediately, and before an 
interview takes place.  A designee from the department(s) involved, along with the Communications 
Coordinator, will be responsible for coordinating the response to ensure accurate and complete 
information is presented to the media.  The Communications Coordinator, along with the Department 
head, will determine who should serve as spokesperson to the media.  This must be done in a timely 
fashion to meet the media deadlines.  In these instances, the Communications Coordinator is 
responsible for notifying the Assistant City Manager. 
 



f) The Communications Coordinator will work with any City Staff, City Council Member or other City 
representative regarding obtaining media training. 

 
4) Records –  

a) The City of Navasota is a local governmental entity and subject to the Texas Public Information Act 
(“TPIA”).  As such, most of what we do is a matter of open record.  There are very few exceptions 
included in the TPIA. To insure that only accurate and legal personnel information is released in 
response to a Public Information Act request for personnel records, all information relating to 
personnel records, shall be released only by the City of Navasota Human Resources Department, the 
City’s Legal Counsel or the City Manager’s Office. 
 

b) The City Manager’s Office provides a clipping service for all articles related to the City of Navasota that 
appear in local/area newspapers.  On occasion, articles about City government and staff appear in 
magazines and professional journals; in an effort to archive this information and to generate additional 
coverage for City staff and activities, City staff is encouraged to send copies of these articles to the City 
Manager’s office. 

 
5) Press Releases –  

a) Press releases are written communications that are used to inform the public or news media about an 
event that is occurring in or involving the City. Department heads or their designee shall be responsible 
for generating press releases that affect their area of responsibility. The Communications Coordinator 
may assist in preparing press releases if needed.   

 
b) All press releases shall be forwarded to the Communications Coordinator for approval prior to 

distribution to the media. Upon approval, the Communications Coordinator will send the press 
releases to the media or appropriate outlet. 

 
6) Press Conferences –  

a) Press conferences offer an opportunity for the City to make announcements and/or answer questions 
for the media.  
 

b) When an event occurs and the news media requests a press conference or an on-camera interview, 
staff/City Council shall direct these media request to the Communications Coordinator.  
 

c) When a department requires a press conference to be held, the department head shall work with the 
Communications Coordinator. 

 
7) Advertising – All published reports, brochures, fact sheets, etc., should be sent to the City Manager’s office 

to be archived and considered for availability in the Citizen information display rack and on the City’s 
website. 

 
8) Public Meetings – All public and /or community meetings should be reported to the City Manager’s Office 

and included on the City’s weekly calendar, which is shared with local media and citizen groups and is 
made available on the City’s website. 



 
9) Internet/City Website –  
The Internet has increasingly become a tool of choice for City employees, citizens and people, both nationally 
and internationally, to get information about the City of Navasota. The following shall apply to information 
posted on the City’s website:   
 

a) Be accurate, consistent and timely with information that is to be published on the City’s website.  
Additionally, to the extent reasonably feasible, ensure that the information published is accessible by 
all people regardless of their respective level of technology.   

b) The Communications Coordinator will determine what information is highlighted on the City’s home 
page. 

c) The Communications Coordinator will work with department heads and the Assistant City Manager to 
determine what information will be posted to the City’s website. 

d) Linking to an outside news source as a way to promote City of Navasota-related information is 
prohibited.  Exceptions to this would be in the case of a co-sponsored event. 

e) Information posted to the City’s website should include a contact name with a phone number and an 
email address.  This contact person should be in a position to respond to requests for additional 
information in a timely manner.  

f) The Communications Coordinator is responsible for determining what graphics standards are 
appropriate for the City’s website. 

 
 
 
10)  Social Media –  
Social networking and social media policy for the City of Navasota addresses the fast-changing landscape of 
the Internet and the way the public communicates and obtains information online. City departments may 
consider using social media tools to reach a broader audience.  The City encourages the use of social media to 
further the goals of the City and the mission of its departments, where appropriate. All social media use must 
comply with the requirements contained in this communications policy and the City’s social media policy. 
 

a) Personal Use 
All City employees and Council members may have personal social networking and social media sites. 
These sites should remain personal in nature and be used to share personal opinions or non-work 
related information.  Following this principle helps ensure a distinction between sharing personal and 
City views. Council members should be cautious commenting on social media posts where other 
Council members have commented as this could lead to a violation of the Texas Open Meetings Act.  

 
b) City employees and Council members must never use their City email account or password in 

conjunction with a personal social networking or social media site. 
 
The following guidance is for City employees who decide to have a personal social media or social networking 
site and who decide to comment on posts about official City business: 
 

• State your name and, if relevant, role, when discussing City business; 



• Use a disclaimer such as: “The statements posted on this site are my own and don’t reflect or 
represent the opinions of the City of Navasota for which I work.” 
 

 
c) Professional Use 

All official City-related communication through social media and social networking outlets shall remain 
professional in nature and shall always be conducted in accordance with the City’s communications 
policy, social media policy, practices and expectations.  Employees and Council members must not use 
official City social media sites for political purposes, to conduct private commercial transactions, or to 
engage in private business activities. 

 
d) City employees should be mindful that inappropriate usage of official City social media sites can be 

grounds for disciplinary action.  If social media sites are used for official City business, the entire City 
site, regardless of any personal views, is subject to best guidelines and standards as well as public 
records laws, including but not limited to the Texas Public Information Act. 

 
Only persons authorized by the City may publish content to a City website or official City social media site on 
behalf of the City. 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9. AGENDA DATE: February 8,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on approval of the order
of election for the May 1, 2021 election to elect two City
Councilmembers to Positions 4 and 5.

Consideraci'on y acci'on posible en aprobar la orden de la elecci'on
para que la elecci'on del 1 de mayo de 2021 elija dos la ciudad
Councilmembers a las posiciones 4 and 5.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The law states that an election ordered by an authority of a
political subdivision shall be ordered not later than the 62nd day
before election day.  The city charter states the council members
shall order the election at least 30 days before the election. 
January 18, 2021 through February 12, 2021 is the period
recommended for calling the election and posting notice of
election.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the order of election for the May 1,
2021 election to elect two City Councilmembers to Positions 4 and
5.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Election Order

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1612282083x_at.pdf






ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 10. AGENDA DATE: February 8,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon
with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is
necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember,
in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda
for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of
the regular agenda.

Consent Items are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month
of January 2021;

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the
month of January 2021;

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 951-21, amending Chapter 4 Business regulations,
Article 4.02 sale of alcohol beverages regarding authorizing open
containers of alcohol in the Central Business District in City of
Navasota;

D. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 952-21, designating a portion of Railroad Street a
one-way street and authorizing the placement of signage;

E. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 953-21, relating to speed zones which specifically
designate additional areas in the City of Navasota in which rates
of speed of thirty (30) miles per hour or more are authorized; and

F. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 954-21, authorizing participation with other
Entergy service area cities in matters concerning Entergy Texas,
Inc. at the Public Utility Commission of Texas in 2021.

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 



 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the consent agenda items which
include the minutes and expenditures for the month of December
2020; the second reading of Ordinance No. 951-21, amending
Chapter 4 Business regulations, Article 4.02 sale of alcohol
beverages regarding authorizing open containers of alcohol in the
Central Business District in City of Navasota; the second reading
of Ordinance No. 952-21, designating a portion of Railroad Street
a one-way street and authorizing the placement of signage; the
second reading of Ordinance No. 953-21, relating to speed zones
which specifically designate additional areas in the City of
Navasota in which rates of speed of thirty (30) miles per hour or
more are authorized; and the second reading of Ordinance No.
954-21, authorizing participation with other Entergy service area
cities in matters concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Public
Utility Commission of Texas in 2021.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Minutes - 01/11/2021
2. Minutes - 01/14/2021
3. Minutes - 01/19/2021
4. Minutes - 01/25/2021
5. Expenditures for January 2021
6. Ordinance No. 951-21
7. Ordinance No. 952-21
8. Ordinance No. 953-21
9. Ordinance No. 954-21

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1611955059x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1611955085x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1611955111x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1611955140x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1612204400x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1612291350x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1611955559x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1611955582x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1611955604x_at.pdf


MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 11, 2021   

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 
Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, 
Texas on the above date with the following being present: 
 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 
Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2  

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 
Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 
 
thus constituting a quorum.  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 
Lance Hall, Finance Director; Lupe Diosdado, Community Development Director; Hung 
Mai, IT Specialist; Cary Bovey, Legal Counsel; Rayna Willenbrink, Economic 
Development Specialist; Tiffany Sammon, Library Director; Jason Katkoski, Fire 
Chief/EMC; Madison Brooks, Marketing and Communication Coordinator; Michael Mize, 
Lieutenant; Jordan Odle, Firefighter; Jessica Bomar, Firefighter; Robert Harris, 
Firefighter; and Crystal Martin, Police Officer. 
 
VISITORS:  Connie Clements (Virtually), Deborah Richardson, Mac Vaughn, Shon 
Magum, Doris Sauls, John Henry, Laura Gross, Audrey Sauls, Chris Tucker, Jessica 
Tucker, Roosevelt Ellis, Sr., Michael Dearing, Ana Cosino, Jonathan Jennings, Todd 
(Virtually), Amy Burrer (Virtually) and Thadwick Gains. 
 
THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2.  Invocation was given by Mac Vaughn.  The City Council, staff members and visitors  
     then recited the Pledge of Allegiance the American Flag and the Texas Flag. 
 
3.  Remarks of visitors:  Roosevelt Ellis Sr. addressed the City Council concerning a   
     complaint he filed against the Police Department.  He would like an update as to the  
     status of this complaint.  Doris Sauls addressed the City Council.  She had two  
     words for the City Council, Repent and Release in the name of Jesus the Christ of  
     Nazareth.  
 

4.  Staff Report: 

(a) Lieutenant Michael Mize introduced Chrystal Martin as a new police officer.  Fire 



Chief/EMC Jason Katkoski introduced Jessica Bomar, Jordan Odle and Bobby Harris 
as new Firefighters; 

(b) City Manager Brad Stafford gave an update on the Railroad Commission audit 
letters received; 

(c) City Secretary Susie M. Homeyer gave an election update; 

(d) Economic Development Specialist Rayna Willenbrink gave an update on the latest 
Navasota Economic Development meeting; 

 (e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, 
including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information 
regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, 
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or 
sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community 
events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended 
by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the 
public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the 
agenda. 
 

 

5.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the engineering agreement with Bleyl 
Engineering for the 2020 Capital Improvement Project in the amount of $867,000.00, 
seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson.  The following votes were recorded: 

                     AYES:  Mayor Bert Miller, Councilmember Bernie Gessner,    
                       Councilmember Josh Fultz and Councilmember Pattie  
                       Pederson 
 
                       NAYS: 
  
                       ABSENT:  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt 
 
Mayor Bert Miller announced that the motion carried. 
 
6.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the addendum to the lease 
agreement with Anderson Grimes LLC for the reimbursement of the cost of 
construction of airport ramp not to exceed $115,000.00, seconded by 
Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 
carried. (Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt came back into the room at this time and was 
present to vote) 
 
7.  A discussion was held on the alcohol sales for the Texas Birthday Bash.  Laura 
Gross addressed the City Council about her proposal she submitted.  Councilmember 



Josh Fultz moved to approve the Texas Birthday Bash vendor agreement with Laura’s 
Bartending for alcohol sales, seconded by Mayor Bert Miller.  The following votes 
were recorded: 
 
                       AYES:  Mayor Bert Miller, Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt,    
                       Councilmember Josh Fultz and Councilmember Pattie  
                       Pederson 
 
                       NAYS: Councilmember Bernie Gessner 
  
                       ABSTAIN:   
 
Mayor Bert Miller announced that the motion carried. 
 
8.  The agenda item for a variance at 101 Abraham Street was tabled and will be 
rescheduled as soon as possible. 
 
9.  Mayor Bert Miller moved to adopt the revised policy for naming or renaming of a 
city facility, street, meeting room, public park or other improvement for individuals, 
families businesses or organizations, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and 
with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
10.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the display case policy for the 
Navasota Public Library, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each 
Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
11.  The City Council reviewed the Navasota quarterly investment report for the 
quarter ending December 31, 2020. 
 
12.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the consent agenda items 
which include the minutes and expenditures for the month of December 2020, 
seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and with each Councilmember voting AYE, 
the motion carried. 
 
13.  The City Council held an Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.074, 
Texas Government Code, Personnel Matters, concerning the annual evaluation of the 
City Manager and possible amendment to the employment agreement for the City 
Manager. The time was 7:33 p.m. 
 
14.  The City Council reconvened in open session at 8:54 p.m. 
 

15.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to amend the employment agreement 
with the City Manager by adding a provision providing that the City will pay the City 
Manager’s five percent matching contribution to the Texas Municipal Retirement 



System based on his salary and to update the existing contract language and 
consolidate all prior amendments to the employment agreement into a new contract, 
seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, 
the motion carried. 
 

    16.     Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 8:58 p.m. 
 
 
 
                                                     _____________________________ 
                                                            BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

  

 



MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

JANUARY 14, 2021 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at The Navasota Center, located at 

101 Stadium Drive at 10:00 a.m., Navasota, Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2  

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

 

(Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 2 and Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 were 

absent) 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Madison Brooks, 

Marketing and Communication Coordinator; and Rayna Willenbrink, Economic Development Specialist. 

 

VISITORS:  David Aguilar, Monica Arredondo, Marilyn Bettes, Michelle Bobo, Dr. Tracy Brewer, Kenneth 

Chumchal, Alyssa Clopton, Ana Cosino, Phillip Cox, Steve Duncan, Joe Fauth, Sherry Fauth, Steve 

Fullhart, Dr. Ronnie Gonzales, Christian Gonzales, Kenny Graves, Johnny McNally, Brenda Meekins, Danny 

Meekins, Matt Morse, Dr. Stu Musick, Chris Myiers, Tammi Pearson, Andre Perrard, Matt Prochaska, 

Henry Sanders, Jammy Smith, Mary Ann Waters, Patty Whitney and Matt Ybarra. 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

     A quorum of the City Council attended the State of the City Address. 

 

    Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 1:00 p.m. 

  

 

                                                  ______________________________ 

                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING 

JANUARY 19, 2021   

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council Chambers, Room 

No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 5:30 p.m., Navasota, Texas on the above date with the 
following being present: 

 
Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2  

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 
Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 
 

thus constituting a quorum.  
 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Lupe Diosdado, 
Development Services Director; and Cary Bovey, Legal Counsel (Virtually). 

 
VISITORS:  Connie Clements, Audrey Sauls, Heather Woolwine (Virtually), Shon Mangum and Myra 

Dickson.  

 
THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 

2.  The Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas Flag was  

     dispensed. 
 

3.  Remarks of visitors:  None. 
 

4.  Audrey Sauls addressed the City Council and spoke on behalf of Blanch Steward on this item.  

Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve Ordinance No. 950-21, granting a variance to 

Chapter 3, Building Regulations, Article 3.02 Technical and Construction Codes and Standards, Division 
3 residential Code, Section 3.02.102(B), adoption of minimum size for residences and permit fees of 

the City of Navasota Code of Ordinances and declaring this Ordinance to be an emergency measure 
for property located at 101 Abraham Street, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each 

Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried.  

 

5. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 5:54 p.m. 

 
 

                                                        _____________________________ 
                                                               BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 25, 2021   

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 
Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, Texas on 
the above date with the following being present: 
 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 
Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2  

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 
Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 
 
thus constituting a quorum.  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Lance Hall, 
Finance Director; Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; Cary Bovey, Legal Counsel 
(Virtually); Rayna Willenbrink, Economic Development Specialist; Tiffany Sammon, Library 
Director; Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; Madison Brooks, Marketing and Communication 
Coordinator; Erik Covarrubias, Code Enforcement Specialist; Jose Coronilla, Director of Streets 
and Sanitation; Jeff Greer, Director of Utilities; Shawn Myatt, Police Chief/Assistant City 
Manager; Pat Gruner, Municipal Judge (Virtually); Jessica Bomar, Firefighter; and Michael 
Smithwick, Firefighter. 
 
VISITORS:  Connie Clements, Deborah Richardson, Mac Vaughn, Shon Magum, Doris Sauls, 
Kelly Hajek, Tim Wolf, Geoff Horn, Audrey Sauls, Jared Engelke, Louis Vidotto and Nancy 
Vidotto. 
 
THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2.  Invocation was given by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt.  The City Council, staff  
     members and visitors then recited the Pledge of Allegiance the American Flag and  
     the Texas Flag. 
 
3.  Remarks of visitors:  Doris Sauls addressed the City Council about ordering a special  
     bond election for park and recreation purposes to be included on the May 1, 2021  
     City election. 
 

4.  Staff Report: 

(a) The City Council presented Geoff Horn with a plaque for his service and dedication while 
serving on the City Council; 

 



(b) Marketing and Communications Coordinator Madison Brooks gave an update on the 
Texas Birthday Bash; 

(c) Councilmember Bernie Gessner gave an update on the latest Planning & Zoning 
meeting;  

 (d) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, 
including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding 
holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or 
other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; 
information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a 
non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and 
announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the 
City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. 
 

 

5.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the bid award, including Alternate No. 1, to 
Teal Services LLC in the amount of $375,639 for the 2020 Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Rehabilitation Project, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each 
Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 

6. The agenda item from Audrey Sauls to rename Peeples Street to Baldwins Boulevard was 
tabled. 
 

7.   Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the Basic Scope of services for the pedestrian 
and bicycle plan amendment to the Thoroughfare Plan in the amount of $36,500.00, 
seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the 
motion carried. 
 

8.   Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the proposal from Brycer LLC for service 
providers who will inspect and test fire protection systems, seconded by Councilmember 
Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 

9.   Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to accept the Navasota Police Department’s 2020 
Racial Profiling Data Report and that the report be placed on file, seconded by 
Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 

10.   
 
 
 
 
 
11.   

Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 951-21, 
amending Chapter 4 Business regulations, Article 4.02 sale of alcohol beverages regarding 
authorizing open containers of alcohol in the Central Business District in City of Navasota, 
with noted revisions discussed, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each 
Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 952-21, 
designating a portion of Railroad Street a one-way street and authorizing the placement of 
signage, seconded by Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each Councilmember voting 
AYE, the motion carried. 
 



12.    Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the library policy, seconded by 
Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 
carried. 

  

13.   Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to appoint Eric Covarrubias to the Brazos Valley Council of 
Governments Solid Waste Advisory Committee, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner 
and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 

14.   Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 953-21, 
relating to speed zones which specifically designates additional areas in the City of Navasota 
in which rates of speed thirty (30) miles per hour are authorized, seconded by 
Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 
carried. 

  

15.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 954-21, 
authorizing participation with other Entergy Service Area Cities in matters concerning 
Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Pubic Utility Commission of Texas in 2021, seconded by 
Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 
carried. 
 

16.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the procedures for CDBG-DR monthly 
activity status reports, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each 
Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 

17.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the Policy and Procedures for Grant 
Payments, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with Councilmember voting AYE, the 
motion carried. 

  

16.     Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:26 p.m. 
 
 
 
                                                     _____________________________ 
                                                            BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

  

 
 











































































































ORDINANCE NO.   951-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 4 BUSINESS 
REGULATIONS, ARTICLE 4.02 SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, 
TEXAS REGARDING AUTHORIZING OPEN CONTAINERS OF 
ALCOHOL IN THE CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY AND REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FINDING 
PROPER NOTICE OF MEETING. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule municipality; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, the City 

has the authority to adopt ordinances and regulations that are for good government, 
peace and order of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, Section 
51.072 confirms that the City has the full power of local self-government; and 

 
WHEREAS, Article 4.02 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota 

regulates alcoholic beverages within the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 109.35 of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code authorizes the 

City to regulate open containers and the public consumption of alcohol in the City’s 
Central Business District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend Article 4.02 of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Navasota to reflect changes in the regulations applicable to 
open containers and the public consumption of alcohol in the City’s Central Business 
District;  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. 
 

 Chapter 4, Business Regulations, Article 4.02, Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, 
Section 4.02.009 Reserved, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, is 
hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:  
 

 
 



Sec. 4.02.009       Regulations Applicable to Central Business District 
 

(a) Notwithstanding any other section of this Article, a person may possess an open 

container or publicly consume an alcoholic beverage in the Central Business 

District of the City.  

(b) For the purposes of this section, the Central Business District shall be defined as: 

the 200 and 300 Blocks of E. Washington Avenue; the 100 Block of S. Railroad 

Street; the 100 and 200 blocks of E. McAlpine Street; the 100 Block of Farquhar 

Street; and the 100 block of S. Lasalle Street the area of the City within the 

boundaries of the Central Business District as indicated on the Official Zoning 

Map of the City, which is on file in the office of the City Secretary and 

incorporated herein for all purposes. The Central Business District shall also be 

defined, for purposes of this section, to include Mance Lipscomb Park located at 

140 N. La Salle Street, Navasota, Texas. 

(b)(c) It shall be unlawful for any person to use, carry, or possess 

any glass container on any city street, sidewalk, alley, park, parking lot or other 

public property or rights-of-way when possessing an open container of alcohol or 

publicly consuming an alcoholic beverage in the Central Business District of the 

City. “Glass container” means a container of any configuration, with a capacity 

when empty of more than one-half (0.5) ounce, that is made of glass, crystal, 

ceramic, or any other material likely to shatter when dropped onto or struck by 

harder material. 

 
SECTION 2. 

REPEALER AND SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 

All provisions of any ordinance, resolution, or other action of the City in conflict 
with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent they are in conflict. Any 
remaining portions of said ordinances, resolutions, or other actions shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

 
SECTION 3. 

SEVERABILITY 
 

Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is expressly 
provided that any and all remaining portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force 
and effect. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, 
and each section, subsection, sentences and clauses and phrases remaining should any 
provision be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 

 
 

https://www.lawinsider.com/dictionary/glass-container
https://www.lawinsider.com/dictionary/glass-container


 
 
 

SECTION 4. 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 

publication, as may be required by governing law.  
 

SECTION 5. 
PROPER NOTICE AND MEETINGS 

 
It is hereby officially found and determined that the meetings at which this 

Ordinance was passed were open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time and purpose of said meetings were given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 25TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2021 
 
 
 
                                                                     _________________________ 
                                                                               BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 8TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2021 
 
 
 
                                                                     _________________________ 
                                                                               BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



ORDINANCE NO.  952-21  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS, DESIGNATING A PORTION RAILROAD 
STREET A ONE-WAY STREET AND AUTHORIZING THE 
PLACEMENT OF SIGNAGE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
AND REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
AND FINDING PROPER NOTICE OF MEETING. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule municipality; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, the City 

has the authority to adopt ordinances and regulations that are for good government, 
peace and order of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, Section 
51.072 confirms that the City has the full power of local self-government; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 311.001 of the Texas Transportation Code provides that a 
home-rule municipality has exclusive control over and under the public highways, 
streets, and alleys of the municipality; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires designate a portion of Railroad Street as 

one-way only;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. 
RAILROAD STREET ONE-WAY  

 
The portion of Railroad Street from Johnson Street to Washington Avenue is 

hereby designated a one-way street with traffic only flowing northbound.  
 

SECTION 2. 
SIGNAGE 

 
The City Manager is authorized to have appropriate signage installed on Railroad 

Street notifying traffic that Railroad Street is a one-way street and to expend any funds 
necessary for the purchase and installation of the signage.  

 
 
 
 



SECTION 3. 
REPEALER AND SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 
All provisions of any ordinance, resolution, or other action of the City in conflict 

with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent they are in conflict. Any 
remaining portions of said ordinances, resolutions, or other actions shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

 
SECTION 4. 

SEVERABILITY 
 

Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is expressly 
provided that any and all remaining portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force 
and effect. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, 
and each section, subsection, sentences and clauses and phrases remaining should any 
provision be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 

 
SECTION 5. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 

publication, as may be required by governing law.  
 

SECTION 6. 
PROPER NOTICE AND MEETINGS 

 
It is hereby officially found and determined that the meetings at which this 

Ordinance was passed were open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time and purpose of said meetings were given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 25TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2021 
 
 
                                                                     _________________________ 
                                                                               BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 8TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2021 
 
 
 
                                                                     _________________________ 
                                                                               BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 



1 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  953-21 

 

AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO SPEED ZONES WHICH 

SPECIFICALLY DESIGNATES ADDITIONAL AREAS IN THE CITY OF 

NAVASOTA IN WHICH RATES OF SPEED OF THIRTY (30) MILES PER 

HOUR OR MORE ARE AUTHORIZED; RESCINDING ALL PARTS OF 

ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND DECLARING THAT 

ATTENDANT FACTS NECESSITATE IMMEDIATE ACTION. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

NAVASOTA, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That any and all ordinances or parts of ordinances relating to speed zones 

on FM 1227 in the City of Navasota are hereby rescinded, and the 

following are additional specifically designated areas in which a rate of 

speed of thirty (30) miles per hour or more is authorized. 

 

A. FM 1227, for traffic moving in a southerly direction for the first 1.117 

miles, from the intersection of FM 379 to the Navasota south city 

limits, the speed limit shall be fifty-five (55) miles per hour. 

 

B. FM 1227, for traffic moving in a northerly direction for the first 1.117 

miles, from the Navasota south city limits to the intersection of FM 

379, the speed limit shall be fifty-five (55) miles per hour. 

 

SECTION 2: WHEREAS, the preservation of the general welfare of the public 

necessitates immediate action, this Ordinance shall be effective from and 

after the date of its passage on second reading as provided by the Charter 

of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

 

PASSED and APPROVED on its first reading this 25th day of  January, 2021. 

PASSED and APPROVED on its second reading this 8th day of February, 2021.  

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Hon. Bert Miller, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM   

 

 

_______________________________              _______________________________   

Susie Homeyer     Cary L. Bovey 

City Secretary      Legal Counsel 
 



2 

 

 

 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

 

COUNTY OF GRIMES  § 

 

 

 I, _____________________ City Secretary of the City of Navasota, County of Grimes, 

State of Texas, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of an 

Ordinance passed and approved by the City of Navasota on the _____ day of 

_________________, 2021, and is now in file in my office and notice is hereby given of the 

passage of the same in the manner and for the length of time as required by the Charter of the 

City of Navasota. 

 

 GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the ______ day of  

 

____________________, 2021. 

 

 

  

      _____________________________ 

      Susie M. Homeyer 

City Secretary, City of Navasota 

 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 954-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF NAVASOTA, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION WITH OTHER 
ENTERGY SERVICE AREA CITIES IN MATTERS 
CONCERNING ENTERGY TEXAS, INC. AT THE PUBLIC 
UTILITY COMMISSION OF TEXAS IN 2021; AUTHORIZING 
THE HIRING OF LAWYERS AND RATE EXPERTS; 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION TO THE FULL 
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW AT THE PUBLIC UTILITY 
COMMISSION OF TEXAS; FINDING THAT THE MEETING 
COMPLIES WITH THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT; AND 
DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

  
 WHEREAS, Cities have exclusive original jurisdiction over rates, 
operations, and services of an electric utility in areas in the municipality pursuant 
to Tex. Util. Code § 33.001; 
 
 WHEREAS, Cities have standing in each case before the Public Utility 
Commission of Texas that relates to an electric utility providing service in the 
municipality pursuant to Tex. Util. Code § 33.025;  
 

WHEREAS, Entergy Texas, Inc. (“ETI” or “Company”) is expected to 
litigate rate change requests in various proceedings before the Public Utility 
Commission of Texas or before municipalities in 2021, which may include (1) rate 
proceedings or cost adjustments such as a transmission cost recovery rider, a 
distribution cost recovery rider, generation cost recovery rider, energy efficiency 
cost recovery factor, or hurricane restoration cost or offset true-ups, and (2) 
various fuel cost refunds or surcharges and reconciliations; 
 
 WHEREAS, ETI is scheduled to file fuel factor proceedings at the Public 
Utility Commission in February and August 2021, and may file other fuel 
proceedings to refund or surcharge fuel charges; 
 

WHEREAS, ETI is scheduled to file a proceeding to recover costs incurred 
in association with its Energy Efficiency Plan as well as reconcile past costs; 
 
 WHEREAS, Cities have the statutory right to set fair and reasonable rates 
for both the Company and customers within Cities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Cities are entitled to reimbursement by the utility of their 
reasonable rate case expenses to participate in cases that are deemed rate 
proceedings pursuant to Tex. Util. Code § 33.023. 
 



 2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, that: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City of Navasota shall participate with other Cities to 
intervene in ETI’s various rate filings related to the various fuel cost surcharges 
and reconciliations, any interim or incremental surcharge proceedings or 
surcharge adjustments, and for any base rate adjustment proceedings or cost of 
service adjustments on file with the Public Utility Commission of Texas or with 
municipalities in 2021. 
 

SECTION 2. The City of Navasota employs the Lawton Law Firm P.C. to 
represent the City with regard to the ETI rate matters before local and Public 
Utility Commission of Texas and any court of law and authorizes counsel to 
employ rate experts as are recommended by the Cities’ Steering Committee to 
intervene in fuel or rate related proceedings at the Public Utility Commission 
concerning ETI’s rates charged to Texas customers. 

 
 SECTION 3. All such actions shall be taken pursuant to the direction of 
the Cities’ Steering Committee.  Cities’ Steering Committee shall have authority 
to retain rate consultants and lawyers.  Cities’ Steering Committee shall direct 
the actions of Cities’ representatives in the above proceedings.  The Steering 
Committee is directed to obtain reimbursement from ETI of all reasonable 
expenses associated with participation in said proceedings. 
 
 SECTION 4. The meeting at which this Ordinance was approved was in 
all things conducted in strict compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, 
Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. 
 
 SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall be effective from and after the date of 
its passage. 
 
 PASSED by __________________ vote of the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas, this 25th day of January, 2021. 
      
 
                                                             _____________________________ 
                                                                    BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



 3 

PASSED by __________________ vote of the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas, this 8th day of February, 2021. 
      
 
                                                             _____________________________ 
                                                                    BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 11. AGENDA DATE: February 8,
2021

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 687-
21, approving a joint election contract between the City of
Navasota, Grimes County and the Navasota Independent School
District.

Consideración y posible acción sobre la Resolución No 687-21,
aprobando un contrato electoral conjunto entre la Ciudad de
Navasota, el Condado de Grimes y el Distrito Escolar
Independiente de Navasota.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
According to the Election Code, Section 61.012(c), school districts
must conduct a joint election with municipalities.  The City began
this process in 2006 and it has worked very well.  It is
recommended by both entities to contract with the Election
Administrator for Grimes County in accordance with the Election
Code, Section 31.091.  Staff also recommends that the joint
election and early voting be held at the Navasota Center.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 687-21, approving
a joint election contract between the City of Navasota, Grimes
County and the Navasota Independent School District.
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



1. Resolution No. 687-21
2. Election Cost

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1612277503x_at.pdf
http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1612277528x_at.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 687-21 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 2021 JOINT ELECTION CONTRACT BETWEEN CITY OF 

NAVASOTA, TEXAS,  

GRIMES COUNTY, TEXAS AND NAVASOTA  

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas, the Navasota Independent School District and the County 

of Grimes, Texas, desire to enter into a 2021 Joint Election Contract with Lucy Ybarra, as the Grimes 

County Election Administrator. 

 

 AND WHEREAS, the City Council Navasota, Texas desires to give authorization for said contract, a 

copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein for all purposes;  

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

 Said City Council authorizes the 2021 Joint Contract by and among the City of Navasota, Texas, 

Navasota Independent School District and Lucy Ybarra, Grimes County Election Administrator of 

Grimes County, Texas, for the conduct and supervision of the Joint Election on May 1, 2021, said 

contract attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 8TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2021. 

 

 

______________________________ 

         BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

               

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 
  

JOINT ELECTION AGREEMENT   

FOR   

GENERAL ELECTION for LOCAL SUBDIVISIONS (including SCHOOLS)  

  

This contract is made and entered into this the ______ day of ____________, 20____, by and 

between________________________________, hereinafter referred to as “Entity,” and Lucy Ybarra County 

Election Administrator of Grimes County, Texas. All contracting entities are in agreement that elections 

referenced in this contract include elections scheduled for May 1, 2021, as well as any resulting runoffs. All 

election date references include early voting dates.   

  

For the purpose of the above-mentioned Joint Election Agreement, all Entities agree to utilize Early Voting and 

Election Day voting locations identified by Grimes County and the Elections department.   

  

Now, therefore it is agreed that a joint election will be held by the Entity and Grimes County under the 

following terms and conditions:  

  

1) The Entity will contract with the Elections Administrator of Grimes County (“the Contracting 

Officer”) to perform various responsibilities to include election staffing for Early Voting, Election 

Day, Tabulation, and Ballot related duties in connection with the election on behalf of each of the 

entities participating in the election.   

2) Each entity agrees to share equally the expense of Early Voting and Election Day polling 

locations, to include staffing, supplies, equipment, and other related cost.   
3) Each entity agrees to share equally, the expense of ballot production, programming, shipment, and 

equipment predefinition.   

4) Entities agreeing to participate in the Joint Election agree that the Elections Administrator is the 

responsible party for determining election staff, polling locations, and possible consolidation of 

said polling locations for the Joint Election being held.   

5) If one entity cancels its election, the remaining entities holding an election will be responsible for 

all election costs incurred in the Joint Election.   

6) Each entity will identify a person(s) (limit of 2) to be the point of contact for the Contracting  

Officer. This person(s) will address concerns, follow up and questions from/for the Contracting 

Officer. Said person(s) will also serve as the point of contact to receive and then distribute the 

Joint Election results on Election Day. Each entity agrees that no other staff members will be 

given results or directed questions.   

  

The Contracting Officer shall be responsible for performing the following duties in relation to the Joint 

Election for Local Subdivisions:   

  



1) Contact owners or custodians of designated polling locations to arrange use in the Joint Election.   

2) Procure and distribute all necessary election supplies: required documents, maps, supplies needed 

to operate the election, equipment, signs, and ballots.   

3) Procure and prepare all necessary equipment for the election including:   

 Know Ink iPad for Voter Check In,   

 Verity Duo: Voting Booth & Ballot Scanner, and                                     

  Controller: Election Judges operating booth.  

4) Serve as the early voting clerk, and provide deputy voting clerks to assist with early voting.   

5) Arrange, notify, and host training classes for all election staff working in said Joint Election.   

6) Arrange for use of Central Counting Station, Early Voting Ballot Board, including the Ballot By 

Mail team.  

7) Publish all required notices of Logic and Accuracy Testing and Election notices, as required by 

the Secretary of State posted guidelines.   

8) Assist in the general supervision of the election and provide advisory services as requested by the 

entities participating in the election.   

  

Whereas, upon agreement of the above stated terms of the contract for the Joint Election the Entity, 

agrees to the following conditions regarding election costs and billing:   

  

1) The entity agrees to provide payment in full, upon receipt of the final invoice and cost breakdown 

within 90 days of receipt.   

2) The entity agrees to receive the receipt and any additional cost evidence via email statement at the 

email address provided to the Contracting Officer by the entity.  

3) The Entity agrees that contract costs will include a 10% administrative fee to be paid directly to 

Grimes County- Elections Administration for administration and oversight of the Joint Election.    

4) Should the entity request an early voting location that is not a regularly used location for early 

voting purposes, the requesting entity agrees to pay for all staffing and rental costs for the early 

voting period unless otherwise agreed on by the Contracting officer.   

  

The Contracting Officer agrees to provide the following:   

  

1) Immediate notice to all parties involved should any change in costs result in a higher rate of 5% or 

more of all costs related to the elections being held in the current contract year.   

2) Notice of Ballot drafts- schedule and review ballot drafts prior to ballot printing or programming 

with each entity participating in the joint election. (Said review may occur via electronic 

correspondence or, at the request of the entity, in person.)   

  

In the event of an emergency or severe circumstance such as a natural disaster, weather related 

emergencies, pandemic or health related occurrences that could affect Grimes County, its voters, and 

employees- Grimes County reserves the right to terminate the participation of its personnel in the election. 

In such case, the county will provide all the necessary tools, equipment, and materials for the entity to 

host an election, but will not be responsible for staffing or administering said election. Any such 

determination will be made by Grimes County, in its sole discretion, with the input of the Texas Secretary 

of State.   

  

The parties hereto acknowledge that the Contracting Officer may enter a separate elections’ services 

contract with another political subdivision for any election conducted on the same day.   

  

APPROVED by the following parties, also identified as the participants of said election:  



  

____________________________________________  ____________________________________________  

Signature  Signature  

    

____________________________________________  ____________________________________________  

Date  Date  

    

____________________________________________  Grimes County Elections Administrator                                 

Political Subdivision    
  

2  

  





CITY OF NAVASOTA
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

1. PLANNING CALENDAR

http://packets.shea.agendease.com/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1612278855x_at.pdf


 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 

FEBRUARY 8, 2021 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 01/25/2021 

1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) Introduction of new employees; (b) Railroad Street Drainage Report; 
    (c) Code Enforcement Update; (d) Board and Commission update; and (e) Reports from staff  
    and City Council 
5.  Public hearing on renaming Peeples Street 
6.  1st reading of Ordinance No. 955-21, speed zones on FM 379 
7.  Social media policy 
8.  Communication policy 
9.  Order calling the May 1, 2021 election 
10.Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of January 2021; (b) Expenditures for the  
     month of February 2021; (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 951-21, allowing alcohol  
     consumption downtown; (d) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 952-21, Railroad Street one- 
     way traffic; (e) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 953-21, speed zone on FM 1227; and (f) 2nd  
     reading of Ordinance No. 954-21, annual ordinance for Entergy, Texas 
11. Resolution No. 687-21, election contract for May 1, 2021  
12. Adjourn 

 
 

FEBRUARY 12, 2021 – Council Retreat – Navasota Center – 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
February 12, 2021 – Last day to sign up for City Council for May 1, 2021 election 
 

FEBRUARY 22, 2021 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 02/08/2021 

1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) Arts Council Quarterly report for 12/2020; (b) Board and Commission  
     update; and (c) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.  Public hearing on conditional use permit for vehicular sales 
6.  1st reading of Ordinance No. _______, conditional use permit for vehicular sales 
7.  Renaming of Peeples Street 
8.  Election contract for May 1, 2021 election 
9.  Resolution No. _____ - CAT 
10.Adjourn 

 
 
SPECIAL MEETING ON FEBRUARY 23RD, 24th or 25TH to consider 2nd reading of 
ordinance no. ______, conditional use permit for vehicular sales  - ????? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

MARCH 8, 2021 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 02/22/2021 

1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.  Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of February 2021; and (b) Expenditures for the  
     month of February 2021 
6.  Adjourn 

 
 

MARCH 22, 2021 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 03/08/2021 

1.  Called to order 
2.  Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Remarks of visitors 
4.  Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.  Adjourn 

 


	Regular Meeting
	Agenda Item No.  -  City Manager's Message and Statements and Priorities
	 City Manager's Message
	 Statements and Priorities

	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) Introduction of new employees;
(b) Update on Railroad Street drainage improvement project;
(c) Code Enforcement update;
(d) Board and Commission update; and
(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Public hearing on request from Audrey Sauls to change the name of Peeples Street to Baldwins Boulevard.
	 Audrey Sauls request
	 Family History on Peeples

	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 955-21, relating to speed zones which specifically designates additional areas in the City of Navasota in which speed of thirty (30) miles per hour or more are authorized.
	 Ordinance No. 955-21

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Consideration and Possible Action on Social Media Policy.
	 Social Media Policy with edits
	 Social Media Policy

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Consideration and Possible Action on Communications Policy. 
	 Communications Policy with edits
	 Communications Policy

	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Consideration and possible action on approval of the order of election for the May 1, 2021 election to elect two City Councilmembers to Positions 4 and 5. 
Consideraci'on y acci'on posible en aprobar la orden de la elecci'on para que la elecci'on del 1 de mayo de 2021 elija dos la ciudad Councilmembers a las posiciones 4 and 5.
	 Election Order

	Agenda Item No. 10 -  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular agenda.
Consent Items are:
A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of January 2021;
B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of January 2021; 
C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 951-21, amending Chapter 4 Business regulations, Article 4.02 sale of alcohol beverages regarding authorizing open containers of alcohol in the Central Business District in City of Navasota;
D. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 952-21, designating a portion of Railroad Street a one-way street and authorizing the placement of signage;
E. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 953-21, relating to speed zones which specifically designate additional areas in the City of Navasota in which rates of speed of thirty (30) miles per hour or more are authorized; and
F. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 954-21, authorizing participation with other Entergy service area cities in matters concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Public Utility Commission of Texas in 2021.




	 Minutes - 01/11/2021
	 Minutes - 01/14/2021
	 Minutes - 01/19/2021
	 Minutes - 01/25/2021
	 Expenditures for January 2021
	 Ordinance No. 951-21
	 Ordinance No. 952-21
	 Ordinance No. 953-21
	 Ordinance No. 954-21

	Agenda Item No. 11 -  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 687-21, approving a joint election contract between the City of Navasota, Grimes County and the Navasota Independent School District.
Consideraci&oacute;n y posible acci&oacute;n sobre la Resoluci&oacute;n No 687-21, aprobando un contrato electoral conjunto entre la Ciudad de Navasota, el Condado de Grimes y el Distrito Escolar Independiente de Navasota.
	 Resolution No. 687-21
	 Election Cost

	Agenda Item No. 12 -  1. Planning Calendar
	 Planning Calendar


